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Clarification Note #2  

GSA internal reference: 262935 
 

Procurement procedure: GSA/OP/04/21  

 
 
Question #3: Can the infrastructure be hosted in a cloud? Specifically, Microsoft Azure. 
 
Answer #3: The tender specifications do not include any limitation on using cloud hosting before the 
system handover to the GSA (Section 2.1.1, Task 4 of the Tender Specifications), provided that this 
complies with the applicable law. 
 
 
Question #4: Can the GSA provide minimum versions of the Android / iOS operating systems that 
should be supported for mobile apps? 
 
Answer #4: In case the tenderer proposes a mobile solution, the tender specifications do not include 
any limitation on the minimum version of the Android / iOS of such proposed solutions. 
 
 
Question #5: Should mobile apps / web app be only in English or should they be localized to other 
languages? 
 
Answer #5: The technical specifications do not include any limitation or minimum number of language 
interfaces supported. 
 
 
Question #6: Can the GSA provide list of the web browsers with minimal versions that should be 
supported? 
 
Answer #6: The technical specifications do not include any limitation or minimum number of the 
internet browsers supported. 
 
Question #7: Do you expect different roles for users on the web application? Can you specify them? 
 
Answer #7: In the frame of Task 1 (Section 2.1.1 of the Tender Specifications), the contractor shall 
design and develop the overall architecture of the solution proposed, taking the different user´s needs 
into consideration. Nonetheless, the technical specifications do not include any limitation to design 
different roles for users. 
 
Question #8: Should web application be publicly accessible? What features are public and private? 
 
Answer #8: All the solution features and tools have to be publicly accessible.  
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Question #9: Should the solution include an account to use mobile apps or some parts which are 
accessible without login? 
 
Answer #9: The technical specifications do not include any limitation or requirement in terms of login 
credentials to access the solution proposed by the tenderer. 
 
Question #10: Does GSA have Google play / Apple Store accounts for publishing the applications in 
stores? 
 
Answer #10: The GSA does not have official Google play / Apple Store accounts. 
 
Question #11: Can you please provide us use case diagram / scenarios for each of the - User interface 
for drivers, Control centre interface for the road authorities and enforcers; Back-end system; Web 
platform including visualization, analysis and reporting tools? 
 
Answer #11: In the frame of Task 1, the contractor shall design and develop the overall architecture 
of the proposed solution, including the appropriate use case diagrams/scenarios associated to the 
tools and functionalities proposed. Nonetheless, information on the existing Galileo Green Lane 
solution is available under section 2.1.3 of the Tender Specifications and may be used as an example. 
 
Question #12: Task 1  - Web platform including visualization, analysis and reporting tools; Can you 
please describe in detail which visualizations should be on the web? 
 
Answer #12: The technical specifications do not include any limitation or minimum set of data to be 
visualised in order to foster border´s traffic optimisation. Nonetheless, information on the existing 
Galileo Green Lane solution is available under section 2.1.3 of the Tender Specifications and may be 
used as an example. 
 
Question #13: Task 1  - Web platform including visualization, analysis and reporting tools; Can you 
please describe in detail which analysis tool is preferred? And what kind of analysis will be done? 
 
Answer #13: The technical specifications do not include any limitation or minimum set of 
analytics/graphs needed in order to foster border´s traffic optimisation. Nonetheless, information on 
the existing Galileo Green Lane solution is available under section 2.1.3 of the Tender Specifications 
and may be used as an example. 
 
Question #14: Task 1  - Web platform including visualization, analysis and reporting tools; Can you 
please describe in detail which reporting tools is preferred and each demanded report? 
 
Answer #14: The technical specifications do not include any limitation on the reporting tools needed 
in order to foster border´s traffic optimisation. Nonetheless, information on the existing Galileo 
Green Lane solution is available under section 2.1.3 of the Tender Specifications and may be used as 
an example. 
 
Question #15: Task 1  - Web platform including visualization, analysis and reporting tools; How many 
users will use analysis and reporting tools? 
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Answer #15: The technical specifications assume in the proposal up to 500.000 data records per 
month, however there are no limitation on the number of potential users from the Transport 
community and other stakeholders. 
 
Question #16: Task 1  -  Monitoring the traffic situation and the estimated waiting time in road, 
rail and maritime internal border crossings from EU Member States, considering the TEN-T map as 
a minimum reference; Does this mean that TEN-T list of border crossing should be used as a source 
data for this application? 
 
Answer #16: Yes, as indicated in Task 1, the list of border crossings of the TEN-T shall be a source of 
data, as the minimum reference. 
 
Question #17: Task 1  -  Monitoring the traffic situation and the estimated waiting time in road, 
rail and maritime internal border crossings from EU Member States, considering the TEN-T map as 
a minimum reference; Does TEN-T provide API for list of border crossings and corridors? 
 
Answer #17: TEN-T data and maps can be retrieved through the TENtec´s European Commission 
Information System. 
 
Question #18: Task 1  - Monitoring the traffic situation and the estimated waiting time in road, rail 
and maritime non-Schengen border crossings, with particular interest to strategic corridors with 
neighbor countries (e.g. UK, EFTA, Western Balkans, EU candidate countries); Can you please 
describe in detail how monitoring of corridors should be done? 
 
Answer #18: In the frame of Task 1, the contractor shall design and develop the overall architecture 
of the proposed solution, including the proposed strategy and techniques to monitor the traffic among 
border crossings. Nonetheless, information on the existing Galileo Green Lane solution is available 
under section 2.1.3 of the Tender Specifications and may be used as an example. 
 
Question #19: Task 1  - Monitoring the traffic situation and the waiting time in additional points of 
interest for the Transport community, such as national logistics hubs (including airports), 
resting/service areas, re-fuelling stations, parkings, etc. including individual features of the facilities 
represented (e.g. open timing, restaurant, WC/showers, hotels); What source should be used for 
list of POIs? 
 
Answer #19: The technical specifications do not include any limitation or minimum set of data for the 
list of additional points of interest for the transport community. 
 
 
Question #20: Task 1  - Connection to anonymized traffic information datasets from open data 
servers or floating car data either from public/private entities prioritizing its availability, accuracy 
and segregation by passenger cars and trucks; Does GSA have some preferred sources? How 
should that traffic information be used in application? How should they be put together with the 
manually inserted waiting time data? 
 
Answer #20: In the frame of Task 1, the contractor shall design and develop the overall architecture 
of the proposed solution, without any preferential source of information or technique.  
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Question #21: Task 1  - Automatic generation of reports, graphs and statistics in Excel and PDF 
formats with hourly granularity; Can you please describe in detail each of the report that should 
be generated? 
 
Answer #21: Information on the existing Galileo Green Lane solution is available under section 2.1.3 
of the Tender Specifications and may be used as an example. 
 
Question #22: Task 1  - Algorithms to anticipate peaks of traffic and adapt to changing traffic 
patterns; How should data about the predicted peaks should be used in the application? Can you 
explain what do you mean by "adapting to changing traffic patterns"? 
 
Answer #22: In the frame of Task 1, the contractor shall design and develop the overall architecture 
of the solution proposed, including algorithms, taking the different user´s needs into consideration. 
Regarding the point about "adapting to changing traffic patterns", the Tenderer is expected to get 
traffic information datasets in order to support the targeted stakeholders in forecasting traffic 
variations and mobilise resources accordingly. 
 
Question #23: Task 1  - Application Programming Interface (API) facilitating access, analysis and 
distribution of data; Who will be the consumers of the data? For which purpose? Do you expect to 
have some aggregated data or each instance of waiting time reported by users? How many users 
will use the API? And what is estimated number of requests to API ? 
 
Answer #23: In the frame of Task 1, the contractor shall design and develop the overall architecture 
of the solution proposed, taking into consideration the different user´s and the corresponding usage 
estimations. 
 
Question #24: Task 1 - Application Programming Interface (API) facilitating access, analysis and 
distribution of data; Does the GSA prefer some specific type of API,  e.g. SOAP / REST API / OData? 
 
Answer #24: The Tender specifications do not include any limitation on the API configuration 
proposed by the Tenderer. 
 
 
Question #25: Task 1 - Representation of routing alternatives for dispatchers and/or drivers 
showcasing at least the time needed to arrive from the current location to the closest border 
crossings considering the traffic monitored; Is the ambition here to replace existing navigation tools 
and have this inside the app or is it acceptable to open context of other app or use other app (Google 
Maps) API to determine just the time to get there?  
 
Answer #25: The technical specifications do not include any limitation to use any of these two options 
proposed, as far as the information on the time needed to arrive from the current location to the 
closest border crossings is provided (as a minimum feature). 
 
 
Question #26: Task 1 - Unidirectional communication tool from road authorities or service facilities 
to drivers located in the proximities of a specific point of interest. Can you please describe this in 
detail? How should be accounts for road authorities / service facilities managed? Should this be a 
push notification to the app? which kind of events? 
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Answer #26: There is no limitation on the proposed methodology/techniques or different roles for 
users, as far as this would depend on the way the overall architecture is proposed by the Tenderer. 
 
Question #27: Task 2  - The contractor shall engage road authorities, freight carriers and/or 
automotive clubs in the testing of the designed solution prior to implementation and any other 
entity as requested by the GSA. The testing campaign should be proposed with basic operational 
capacity by the tenderer in its proposal and performed at selected border crossings, following GSA 
agreement. - We are a bit confused by the "Testing prior implementation". Should we carry out this 
as UI test? Also, with the strict timeframe for development this is hard to achieve prior 
implementation - there is no time to do some proof-of-concept. Can we reuse some experiences 
from the existing (previous) project? 
 
Answer #27: In the frame of Task 2, the contractor shall test the solution designed and developed in 
Task 1. Overlapping of both Tasks is permitted because the testing phase might help to enhance the 
design anticipated in Task 1. However, due date for the pilot activities in selected countries is T0+4 
months. Afterwards, the solution shall operate normally with European coverage. Access to EU 
proprietary information from previous contracts is possible as described in section 2.1.3 of the Tender 
specifications. 
 
Question #28: Task 2  - Monitoring the traffic situation and the estimated waiting time in points of 
interest for the Transport community. At least one queuing time test in parking or resting/service 
areas shall be implemented. Can you explain in detail how should the queuing time test should look 
like? 
 
Answer #28: In the frame of Task 2, the contractor shall test a queuing time for drivers approaching 
to service areas, parking or similar points of interest. Such functionality is requested only for the 
testing in selected locations by the Contractor, but its implementation  is not mandatory in the 
solution designed in Task 1 with European coverage.  
 
Question #29: Task 3  - Updates of relevant data of the platform shall be made at least once an hour; 
Do we understant correctly that is sufficient that data  for API/ reporting/analysis/  web interface 
will be updated in one hour interval? 
 
Answer #29: Yes, the interpretation is right. 
 
Question #30: Task 3  - The response time to user´s incidents shall be no more than 1 working day. 
What kind of level support (L1,L2,L3) do you want ? Can we use for ticketing system like JIRA for 
incident reporting? 
 
Answer #30: There is no limitation or specific requirement on the proposed methodology/techniques 
or user´s support interfaces:  it will depend on the way the overall architecture is proposed by the 
Tenderer. 
 
Question #31: Task 3  -  Besides, the Tenderer shall propose additional KPIs to be included in the SLA 
and referring to the operational maintenance activities below.:  Data collection and processing from 
aggregated crowdsourced data; Can you please explain in detail how do you imagine  data collection 
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and processing from aggregated crowdsourced data ? What data should be collected and how they 
should be used in the application? 
 
Answer #31: The aim of the technological solution is to facilitate the work of freight dispatchers by 
optimising traffic and waiting time in border crossings or other relevant point of interest (parkings, 
service areas, logistics hubs). There is no limitation or specific requirement on the data sources or 
methodology/techniques to process and display aggregated data.  
 
Question #32: Task 3  -  Besides, the Tenderer shall propose additional KPIs to be included in the SLA 
and referring to the operational maintenance activities below.:  Ad-hoc traffic visualization, analysis 
and forecasting; Can you please list of all analysis and forecast with description that should be used 
implemented ? 
 
Answer #32: The Tenderer is expected to freely propose and describe KPIs in the multiple areas 
specified in Task 3. There is no limitation or specific requirement on how the develop the metrics and 
parameters: this will depend on the way the overall architecture is proposed by the Tenderer. 
 
Question #33: Task 3  -  Besides, the Tenderer shall propose additional KPIs to be included in the SLA 
and referring to the operational maintenance activities below.:  Ad-hoc traffic visualization, analysis 
and forecasting; The traffic visualization should be based on data from the mobile application ? 
 
Answer #33: The Tenderer is expected to freely propose and describe KPIs in the multiple areas 
specified in Task 3. There is no limitation or specific requirement on how the develop the metrics and 
parameters: this will depend on the way the overall architecture is proposed by the Tenderer. In 
particular, the technical specifications do not mandate the use of mobile application solutions. 
 
Question #34: Task 3  -  Besides, the Tenderer shall propose additional KPIs to be included in the SLA 
and referring to the operational maintenance activities below.: Automatic reporting generation 
including graphics, KPIs and traffic statistics; Can you please describe in detail all required reports, 
KPI and statistics that should be generated ? 
 
Answer #34: The Tenderer is expected to freely propose and describe KPIs in the multiple areas 
specified in Task 3. There is no limitation or specific requirement on how the develop the metrics and 
parameters: this will depend on the way the overall architecture is proposed by the Tenderer. 
 
Question #35: Task 3  -  Besides, the Tenderer shall propose additional KPIs to be included in the SLA 
and referring to the operational maintenance activities below.: Handling of the application support 
requests; What kind of level support (L1,L2,L3) do you want ? Can we use for ticketing system like 
JIRA for incident reporting? 
 
Answer #35: There is no limitation or specific requirement on the proposed methodology/techniques 
or user´s support interfaces: this will depend on the way the overall architecture is proposed by the 
Tenderer. 
 
Question #36: Task 3  -  Besides, the Tenderer shall propose additional KPIs to be included in the SLA 
and referring to the operational maintenance activities below.: Provision of website 
“GalileoGreenLane.eu” maintenance; Can you please provide us the expected scope / amount of 
work for GalileoGreenLane.eu maintenance ? Currently the web site returns 403 - Forbidden. 
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Answer #36: There is no limitation or specific requirement on the proposed methodology/techniques 
or user´s support interfaces: this will depend on the way the overall architecture is proposed by the 
Tenderer. The URL formats: “https://galileogreenlane.eu", "http://galileogreenlane.eu", 
"https://www.galileogreenlane.eu" and "http://www.galileogreenlane.eu" are operational in the 
main browsers (e.g. Chrome, Firefox, Opera, Internet Explorer,…). Access to the URL: 
“https://galileogreenlane.eu/reports" is permitted following the conditions described under section 
2.1.3 of the Tender Specifications. 
 
Question #37: Task 4  -  Besides, the Tenderer shall propose additional KPIs to be included in the SLA 
and referring to the operational maintenance activities below.: Upon the completion of its 
development, the EU proprietary system components and documentation, as per article 9.1 of the 
draft contract (Annex II to the Invitation to Tender), shall be handed over to the GSA. The handover 
shall include whatever necessary for the GSA to be able to exercise its right as per contractual 
provision (e.g. it shall include the migration package, domains and service email addresses (if 
relevant) code, manuals and related documentation). Infrastructure like database, application 
servers should also be part of handover? If yes, is it suffices to provide logins for infrastructure or 
do you expect to migrate whole infrastructure to GSA on-premise? 
 
Answer #37: As specified in Task 4 of the Tender specifications, the handover shall include whatever 
necessary for the GSA to be able to exercise its right as per contractual provision. The amount of 
resources (hardware, software) to be migrated to the GSA depends on the technical solution proposed 
by the Tenderer. 
 
Question #38: What set of tests shall be part of delivery? Performance tests, Load test, Penetration 
tests. 
 
Answer #38: Apart from what is specified in Task 2 of the Tender Specifications, there is no limitation 
or requirement on proposing additional tests: this will depend on the way the overall architecture is 
proposed by the Tenderer. 
 
Question #39: Do you have some lessons learnt from the existing solution? What features you liked 
and which are not preferred anymore? 
 
Answer #39: There is no specific information available on the lessons learnt nor are there 
preferred/not preferred features of the existing solution.  
 
Question #40: How does the current solution integrates with the https://live.sixfold.com? It says it 
collects data from onboard truck units which are more accurate, timely and in bigger amount 
compared to limited users on the mobile app. Is the delay reported by the user from the app 
overrides the accurate data from onboard units? 
 
Answer #40: The Tender Specifications do not request tenderers to make a critical analysis of the 
existing solution. As a matter of fact, there is no specific information or lesson learnt available in the 
applicable documents of section 2.1.3 of the Tender Specifications.  
 
Question #41: Can you list all user features that the app and the web should have? 
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Answer #41: In the frame of Task 1, the contractor shall design in details the overall architecture of 
the solution proposed to satisfy the user´s needs.  
 
Question #42: Is this solution always going to be standalone app or some integration with existing 
onboard units or existing navigations is planned? 
 
Answer #42: In the frame of Task 1, the contractor shall design in details the overall architecture of 
the solution proposed to satisfy the user´s needs. No integration is foreseen as part of this 
procurement.  
 
Question #43: The app has no navigation app features - like route planning, turn-by-turn navigation, 
voice guidance etc. It does not know where the truck is heading until it reaches the border crossing 
- at this point it gets detected by the proximity and user can send his report on waiting time. Could 
you please confirm that only the waiting time and image is required? What data should be collected 
about particular report? (username, gps, date, time, etc?) 
 
Answer #43: In addition to the waiting time, Task 1 describes additional information (e.g. the time 
needed to arrive from the current location to the closest border crossings).  It is for the tenderers to 
propose solutions fulfilling these requirements. 
 
Question #44: What are the acceptance criteria for the project handover? 
 
Answer #44: As specified in Task 4 of the Tender specifications, the handover shall include whatever 
necessary for the GSA to be able to exercise its right as per contractual provision. The acceptance 
criteria are linked to the acceptance of Deliverable 4.1 and they depend on the technical solution 
proposed by the Tenderer. 
 
Question #45: Should the solution run as a background service and detect the proximity of border 
crossings even when the screen is off? Should the solution prompt for the waiting time report or 
should it just sit and wait till the user opens it and engage with it? 
 
Answer #45: In the frame of Task 1, the contractor shall design and develop the overall architecture 
of the solution proposed, taking into consideration the different user´s needs (e.g. drivers, traffic 
authorities,…) and corresponding use cases. 
 
Question #46: Will there be another webinar? 
  
Answer #46: Currently, there is no plan for another webinar. However, in case there will be another 
webinar, such will be published on GSA’s website: https://www.gsa.europa.eu/ . 
 
Question #47: How will the GSA answer the questions already sent?  
 
Answer #47: All the questions and answers are published in clarification notes on GSA’s website: 
https://www.gsa.europa.eu/enhanced-galileo-green-lane-design-and-implementation. 
 
Question #48: Do potential tenderers need to sign NDU in order to get the details of the current 
solution?  
 

https://www.gsa.europa.eu/
https://www.gsa.europa.eu/enhanced-galileo-green-lane-design-and-implementation
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Answer #48: Proprietary developments of Galileo Green Lane from previous contracts can be made 
available to tenderers subject to the signature of NDU in line with sections 2.1.3 and 2.2.2 of the 
Tender Specifications.  
 
Question #49: How many contract awardees are targeted?  
 
Answer #49: The direct contract will be concluded with a single tenderer. 
 
Question #50: Will there be other detailed features / requirements requested?  
 
Answer #50: All the features and requirements are specified in the Tender Specifications.  
 
 

-End of document- 


